TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
MINUTES — AUGUST 18, 2021

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Township of Lower Makefield
was held in the Municipal Building on August 18, 2021. Ms. Blundi called the meeting
to order at 7:30 p.m. and called the Roll.

Those present:

Board of Supervisors: Suzanne Blundi, Chair
James McCartney, Vice Chair
John B. Lewis, Secretary
Frederic K. Weiss, Treasurer
Daniel Grenier, Supervisor

Others: Kurt Ferguson, Township Manager
David Truelove, Township Solicitor
Andrew Pockl, Township Engineer

COVID 19 UPDATE

Mr. Grenier commended the Bucks County Commissioners for promoting following
CDC and APA guidelines in our Bucks County Schools. He also commended them
for instituting a strict mask policy at the County Government level.

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mr. Ferguson stated during this portion of the Agenda residents and Youth
Organizations may call in to make a special announcement or contact the Township
to request a special announcement to be added to a future Agenda.

Mr. Ferguson stated information about Park & Recreation in-person recreation
opportunities can be found on the Township Website.

Mr. Ferguson stated Community Day is August 28, 2021, and there will be 3v3
basketball, vendors, rides, a concert, activities, and fireworks. More information
can be obtained by contacting the Township Park & Recreation Department.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 2 of 27

Mr. Ferguson stated the 20" Commemoration of the 9/111 attacks will be

at the Garden of Reflection located at 1950 Woodside Road throughout the
day on 9/11. At 8:30 a.m. there will be a ceremony to honor the victims of
the attacks and mark significant times of the day. From Mid-Day until 3 p.m.
there will be quiet time to reflect on your own at the Memorial, and there

will be ambassadors who will be able to provide information about the Garden
and 9/11. The evening Ceremony will be held at 7:00 p.m.

Mr. Ferguson stated September 12 is the 9/11 Memorial 5K located at the
Garden of Reflection. To register visit GOR5K.com.

Mr. Ferguson stated there will be a Styrofoam Recycling Event that will also
include wine corks and amber/white prescription pill containers with lids
on Saturday, September 18 from 10 a.m. to Noon at the Township Building,
1100 Edgewood Road. Ms. Blundi asked that those bringing prescription
pill containers remove the labels.

Mr. Ferguson stated November 6 is the Veterans Day Parade on Edgewood Road,
and interested sponsors and participants should contact the Park & Recreation
Department.

Mr. Grenier stated a lot of large Township gatherings will be coming up, and
the COVID numbers are spiking. He stated the State is not able to provide

as much guidance as they could previously. He asked Mr. Ferguson if we have
metrics in place that will determine whether or not certain events will have to
be modified or scaled back so that we can be as safe as possible. Mr. Ferguson
stated he could not say that there are specific metrics in terms of cases per
day, etc. He stated the events are outside, and specifically for Community
Day, the booths will be spread out. Mr. Grenier stated COVID numbers are
spiking, and this is the last Board meeting before Community Day so he feels
we should “keep in touch” to see if anything needs to be changed based on
certain metrics that are forcing changes in how things are done at the local and
County level and the private sector as well.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. McCartney moved, Dr. Weiss seconded and it was unanimously carried
to approve the Minutes of July 21, 2021 as written.

Mr. McCartney moved, Dr. Weiss seconded and it was unanimously carried
to approve the Minutes of August 4, 2021 as written.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 3 of 27

TREASURER’S REPORT

Dr. Weiss moved, Mr. Grenier seconded and it was unanimously carried to
approve the July Interfund Transfers in the amount of $741,997.79 as attached
to the Minutes.

Dr. Weiss moved, Mr. Grenier seconded and it was unanimously carried to
approve the Warrant Lists from August 2, 2021 and August 16, 2021 in the
amount of $1,481,124.94 as attached to the Minutes.

2020 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT — MAILLIE, LLC. TOWNSHIP AUDITOR

Mr. Greg Shank, Partner at Maillie LLC. in charge of overseeing the Audit was
present with Mr. Mike Gentile, the Manager overseeing the Audit. Mr. Shank
stated everyone has been issued the Audit Report which is a comprehensive
report in excess of eighty-five pages. In order to present tonight he has an
Audit Executive Summary which was shown.

Mr. Shank stated the primary purpose of the Audit is to issue an opinion
on the Township’s Financial Statements. He stated they reviewed those
statements and audited them, and they have issued a clean, unqualified
opinion which means that the Township has followed the financial
standards of U. S. generally-accepted accounting principles. He stated

the Township has also followed the standards and presented the financials
in accordance with Government accounting standards.

Mr. Shank stated the other report issued is a 114, and there is nothing in
that outside of the norm. He stated there were no disagreements with
management, and management was very cooperative throughout the
Audit giving them all of the information they required to do a thorough
and efficient audit. He stated the information was issued timely based
on their requests.

Mr. Shank stated they did not issue a 115. He stated a 115 letter would

be issued if they noted any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses
during the Audit, and they did not. He stated they found the books and
records to be very well adjusted, and there were no significant adjustments
that had to be made. He stated that is very important since it means that
management and the Supervisors are able to look at financial information
throughout the year, and there are no major adjustments.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 4 of 27

Mr. Shank stated in any Financial Statement there are estimates that have to be
made, and they have to review those estimates to make sure that they are
reasonable. He showed on the screen the major estimates that are throughout
the Report. He noted Capital Assets which on a Government-wide statement
you have Capital Assets that are added, and then you depreciate those Assets
over the useful life. He stated it is shown that that there is $109 million of
Capitalized Assets, and the current year depreciation was S1 million. He stated
the same can be seen for the Business activities. He stated they evaluated those
key estimates and found them to be reasonable.

Mr. Shank stated you can also see the Net Pension Liability and it went down
about 5.9 to 4.4. He stated Business-type activities went from 353 to 228.

He stated this is a net number meaning that is the Liability less the Assets that
the Township has put aside for those Liabilities. Mr. Shank stated the OPEB
Liabilities are much like the Pension where the Liability is determined by the
actuary. He stated this is a net number, but there are no Assets that are ear-
marked which is fairly typical with the OPEB Liability, but they are still presented
in the Financials as a Liability. He stated Compensated Absences is another
common estimate that is done as well as the Fair Market Value of Investment.

Mr. Shank stated a lot of these estimates would look very similar to any other
Township, from the type of estimate, not necessarily their numbers which
he will discuss further.

Mr. Shank noted the page showing Operating Grants and Contributions.

He stated 2019 is shown in orange, and 2020 is in blue. He stated they are
down which is expected since in 2019 there was a RACP of about $900,000.
He stated this is a normal trend line that they would expect and would
happen from year to year as you have particular anomalies with a Grant
hitting in one year and not the other.

Mr. Shank stated Charges for Services were down slightly, and this was
a result of the Pandemic. He stated Transfer Taxes were very similar
and static, and Property Taxes went up as a result of the millage increase.

Mr. Shank noted the next page with the same analysis for Expenditures.
He stated that blue is 2020 and orange is 2019. He stated Park & Rec
Expenditures were down; and in Public Works, the Expenditures were
also slightly down. He stated Public Safety was relatively static which
is an expected trend. He stated General Government was up slightly.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 5 of 27

Mr. Shank stated they did not see any large variances between year to year
when they look at the Expenditures.

Mr. Shank noted the next page which focuses on the Notes and Bonds of the
Township, but it does not consider the Pension Debt or the OPEB. He stated

in December, 2018 the Township was at about $41.7 mill, and the Township
has been on a continual trend to reduce the Debt of the Township. He stated
it was $38 in 2019, down to $35.8 in December, 2020. He stated the Township
is on a steady trend of paying down the Debt.

Mr. Shank noted the page showing Net Pension Obligations. He stated the
actuary would determine the Liability based on a number of factors including
life expectancy. He stated you then subtract the Asset that has been set
aside for the Pension, and the $8. million is the Net Liability. He stated a
significant downward trend can be seen of that Liability, and that is primarily
on the investment/Asset side. He stated there are very detailed Footnotes
on the Statement on this. He stated the Liability on an actuarial basis is
actually going up which is normal; but the reason there is a decrease in the
Net is on the Asset side because of the contributions made by the Township
and especially the good investment returns. He stated 2019 and 2020 were
very good investment years. He stated the annual money-weighted rate of
return for 2019, which the actuary discloses, was about 19% between the
Uniform and non-Uniform; and in 2020 the returns ranged from 13.94% in
the Police and 14% in the non-Uniform. He stated what they are seeing is
that very good investment returns in those two years helped to bridge the
gap with the Asset and Liability. Mr. Shank stated this Liability that the
Township has is by no means unusual. He stated many Townships and Cities
across the State and across the County have significant Pension Liabilities;
and the Township is “pretty good.” He stated the Township has a positive
Government-wide Net Asset. He stated there are many Municipalities and
Cities that are negative because they have such significant Pension Liabilities.

Mr. Shank showed a chart on the Total OPEB (Other Post Employment
Benefit) Liability. He stated there is not a corresponding Asset set aside for
this which is not unusual, so they would expect to see this trending higher

as costs grow. He stated the actuary determines this based on life expectancy
and the benefits derived, and the increase of those benefits. He stated this is
also reported in the Government-wide Financial Statement as a Liability.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 6 of 27

Mr. Shank stated there are two types of statements — the Government Fund
Financial Statement and the Government-wide. He stated the Government
Fund Financial Statement presents on the modified accrual and more closely
depicts the way Governments budget. He stated the Government-wide
Statement is put on a full accrual so you are capitalizing costs, etc.

He stated sometimes the Fund Statements are more meaningful. He showed
the Fund Balance/Net Position, and this is the Assets minus the Liabilities at a
point in time. He stated this is the most important when the Township gets
looked at by the rating agencies, and they have a tendency to focus significantly
on General Funds and Fund Balance. He stated the General Fund Balance is
shown in dark blue, and it went up and down slightly, but is still a healthy Fund
Balance at $1.5 million; and that means the Township has that reserve going
into the next year.

Mr. Shank stated looking at the one that went up for the Sewer, there was a
significant increase during the year which was primarily a result of the rates
going up, and they ended up with about $8.3 million in Net Assets.

Mr. Shank noted the change in Golf where there was improvement which
was primarily because of the popularity of golf and outdoor sports as a
result of the Pandemic.

Mr. Shank noted the next page which is the Net Position on the Government-
wide basis. He stated all the Assets and Liabilities are on an accrual basis.

He stated as he noted earlier it is not unusual to see a City or larger
Municipality have a negative Net position. He stated the reason for this is
because their Assets are exceeded by significant Pension Liabilities and OPEB.
He stated that is not the case in Lower Makefield as the Township has a
significant Net position at the end of the year.

Mr. Shank stated overall the Township financials are in good shape. He stated
during the course of their Audit, they use very powerful software which is a
data-extraction software. He stated the software enables the auditors to extract
the information and look at the data efficiently and quickly. He stated the
Township data and probability is exactly along what they would expect in a
trend line.

Mr. Shank stated the Audit went very well, and minimal adjustments were
required, and management was helpful which enabled them to do an efficient
Audit.



August 18, 2021 Zoning Hearing Board — page 7 of 27

Mr. Lewis asked if they sampled Interfund Transfers in the Audit, and Mr. Shank
stated they do look at Interfund Transfers and “pretty much everything” during

the Audit. He stated they look for anomalies in Transfers that would not appear
right, and they also look at Board Minutes for approvals.

Mr. Lewis asked if they noticed any Contingent Liabilities that the Board has not
previously discussed or disclosed. Mr. Shank stated they did not that they are
aware of.

Mr. Lewis stated it was indicated last year that Lower Makefield has a favorable
Debt to Equity Ratio, and he asked if that is still the case; and Mr. Shank agreed.
Mr. Shank added that they see that on the Government-wide Statement when
they talk about all of the Liabilities and the Assets. He stated they do not just
consider Debt, and they consider the other Liabilities such as OPEB and the
Pension. He stated they are considerable Liabilities, and before the GASB
standards within the last ten years, they were not even presented on the
Government-wide Statement. He stated they are now presented, and as he
noted previously he is seeing many Cities and Townships that have a negative
overall Net Assets in the Township; and Lower Makefield does not have that.

Mr. Lewis stated Mr. Shank has indicated that he is comfortable with the
Balance Sheet, and there is no immediate risk to the long-term safety of
the residents of Lower Makefield. Mr. Shank stated an Auditor cannot
speculate into the future as they are not allowed to do that. He added
that they are not seeing any warning signals.

Mr. Lewis asked Mr. Shank if the proposed sale of the Sewer system to Aqua
were not to go through on time or at all, would that cause him any issues or
concerns about the financial safety of the Township. Mr. Shank stated as he
noted Auditors have to be careful what they can talk about in the future and
projections as they are not allowed to do that. Mr. Shank stated a financial
analysis would be needed to make that assessment.

Mr. Lewis stated Mr. Shank’s firm did their first Audit for the Township in
2018, and also reviewed the 2017 Audit. Mr. Lewis stated in September,
2019, he asked Mr. Furman if he was comfortable with the prior Auditor’s
work, and if he felt that there were any inconsistencies or failures in terms
of internal controls or improper misappropriation or “anything bordering
on something that was a mistake or worse than a mistake;” and Mr. Furman
had stated that he did not adding that he had reviewed the work papers.
Mr. Lewis asked Mr. Shank if that is still his official answer. Mr. Shank



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 8 of 27

stated a typical procedure in any Audit is to go in and look at the work of the
Auditor, the statements, etc.; and there are procedures that they would do that
are normal in any transitional Audit period.

Mr. Lewis noted the Unfunded Pension Liability where there was an improvement
this year largely market based, but we are still below 100%. He stated last year
and previously it had been expressed that there was no significant concern with
our level of funding. Mr. Lewis asked Mr. Shank if he is still okay with that and
that we are not “woefully underfunding our Pension.” Mr. Shank stated any
time there is a deficit it is something that should be considered, but what they
are seeing in the Township is not an extraordinary Liability. He stated he does
like that the gap is closing. He stated just as important as funding, the invest-
ment return is helping to close that gap; and the end goal is to close the gap.
Mr. Shank stated he sees significant progress being made, but they do need

to plan for the future and consider that when looking at the Budget and long-
term planning just as you would the Capital.

Mr. Lewis stated if the Township were to complete its transaction with Aqua
and receive a large sum of money as a result of that, one of the areas that
the funds that could be used for would be resolving the unfunded Pension
Liability and potentially increasing the investment in the Pension Fund.

Mr. Shank stated that is a possibility that should be looked at with the
Township’s Administrators who handle that as well as the actuary.

Mr. Lewis asked if the Township were to significantly increase its Pension
Funding such that it reduces the unfunded Pension Liability, is there a
significant downside risk to over-funding the Pension if it can be invested

in marketable securities. Mr. Shank asked what Mr. Lewis meant by
“downside.” Mr. Lewis asked Mr. Shank if he would have any concerns

with that since in “theory Mr. Shank would be happy because it reduces the
potential Liability of the Township.” Mr. Shank stated the Township would
have to evaluate that, and the Auditors would not be prepared to make a
statement as to how these funds should be invested. He stated they have
not done an analysis on that. He stated when Mr. Lewis made the statement
about “downside,” he could be talking about market risk which is really an
investment item that the Auditor could not comment on. He stated the role
of the Auditor is that they are “fact people,” and they present historical facts,
and they are not able to speculate what the Township should do.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 9 of 27

Mr. Lewis noted the OPEB Liability adding there is not a Fund to offset that in
any way. He added that he knows that this is a relatively-new accounting
principle. Mr. Lewis asked if it is worth considering in the future if it is a
Contingent Liability to have an off-setting fund. Mr. Shank stated these
Liabilities always existed, but GASB changed the rules to have them quantified
and put on the Financial Statement of the Township. He stated it is not unusual
now that OPEB Liabilities are not funded, but that does not mean that it is not

a good idea to fund them; and there are Municipalities that have stated to set
aside funds for this. Mr. Lewis asked if the Township were to consider that,
would it have the same limitations as other Funds in terms of what it could be
invested in or would it have the same flexibility as the Pension Fund. Mr. Shank
stated the Township’s advisor would have to look into this, but he feels there
would be certain restrictions as to the investments. Mr. Lewis stated Pension
investments are more flexible in Second Class Townships. Mr. Shank stated that
would have to be looked into by someone from the investment side.

Ms. Blundi stated she understands that Mr. Shank cannot predict the future or
provide advice in certain areas as that is outside the scope of what Mr. Shank
is here to do.

Mr. Ferguson stated a Health Trust could be set up with similar options as a
Pension Fund. He stated our actuaries are currently creating an OPEB summary
much like they do every year for the Pension summary; and they would come
up with the unfunded number that would start and an annual amount target
to invest. He stated the difference with that versus a Pension would be when
you do a Pension Fund and you have an MMO, you need to put in that MMO
or threaten your funding from the State. He stated because there is no
funding from the State for an OPEB, you can use the numbers as guidance;
and there could be funds put in which would be an irrevocable health trust,
and all that you could draw the money for would be for retirement health
care specifically. Mr. Ferguson stated it gives the same basic parameters of

a Pension Fund to do that.

Mr. Lewis asked Mr. Shank the total number of Municipalities that they are
auditing, and Mr. Shank stated it is over one hundred Governments and
Municipalities. Mr. Lewis asked Mr. Shank how he views our general level of
financial health compared to other Municipalities that they are auditing.

Mr. Shank stated as he indicated they are seeing a lot of larger Cities and
Municipalities with negative Net Assets because of the Pension Liability,

and they are not seeing that in Lower Makefield. Mr. Lewis stated previously
they were given guidance as to where Lower Makefield was versus other



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 10 of 27

Municipalities; and at that time it was indicated that Lower Makefield had a
strong financial position, and he is looking for that “general benchmarking”
between what Lower Makefield looks like financially versus some others.

He stated in Bucks County there are some Municipalities with zero debt and
strong financial footing, and “others not so much.” He stated since they see
approximately 100 Municipalities, giving a range as to where Lower Makefield
fits is helpful in the process. Mr. Shank stated as he indicated it is a strong
Municipality with positive Net Assets which is better than other areas where
there may be deficits. Mr. Lewis stated he understands that has been

Mr. Shank’s experience throughout auditing Lower Makefield, and Mr. Shank
agreed.

Dr. Weiss thanked Mr. Shank for conducting another unqualified Audit.
He also thanked Mr. Ferguson “for getting us there.” Dr. Weiss stated
Mr. Shank’s firm has now seen Lower Makefield in 2017, 2018, 2019, and
2020 and re-stated the 2017 Audit. He asked about the trend since 2017.
Mr. Shank stated they like that the Government-wide Net Assets continue
to go up, and they like the trend where the Net Pension obligation for the
last three years has gone in a positive direction. He stated there will be
some funds that go up and down due to timing, and that is normal; but
they look at the overall big picture, and he feels overall they have seen
some positive trends with the Township. Dr. Weiss stated the Township
is getting healthier as time goes on, and Mr. Shank agreed.

Ms. Blundi asked Mr. Ferguson to speak about the Pension funding.

Mr. Ferguson stated every two years the actuaries do an evaluation, and
the last one that was officially listed would show where things stood on
12/31/18. He stated they are working on the 1/21 report which would be
up to and including December 31 of last year. He stated he has seen the
preliminary report. He stated for non-Police employees all new hires having
started in 2012 are in a Defined-Contribution Plan and not in the Defined-
Benefit Plan which would fall outside of the scope of this evaluation.

He stated in time it will be seen that the Township will be essentially split.
He stated the Police have to stay in the Defined-Benefit Plan under Act 600.
He stated other than the Police, the rest would be in the Contribution Plan
which would be the equivalent of a 401K. He stated with regard to the
Defined-Benefit Plan, he feels that we will see the non-Uniform, which is
those who are not the Police, those being Public Works, the Office staff, and
the Finance Department, that that Pension Fund will be coming in at about
88% in the report, which will probably come out in October. He stated with
regard to the Police Fund, which has the larger amount of money, it will be



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 11 of 27

around 77% to 78%. Mr. Ferguson stated he has spoken to the actuaries, and
they have indicated that if you are close to 80%, they view that “you are okay.”
He stated in 1/1/19, the Police were at 75.5%, and this time he feels it will be
about 77.8% or 77.9% so they like the trend that they are seeing since it is close
to 80%. He stated the non-Uniform number is 88% which they are very pleased
with.

Mr. Lewis stated those are definitely improving and are good numbers.

He stated one of the strategies they did was to get rid of high-load investments
for the vast majority of the portfolio saving investment costs. Mr. Ferguson
stated there was an instruction to put more toward index funds lowering

our costs which saved approximately $60,000 to $70,000.

Mr. Grenier thanked Mr. Shank for the very thorough report. He stated he did
not see in the Board’s packet the Summary Report which was presented this
evening, and he asked if they could be provided a copy of that. Mr. Shank agreed
and added that Mr. Ferguson has that. Mr. Ferguson agreed to forward it to the
Board tomorrow.

Mr. Grenier noted Page 8 of the Executive Summary which showed the various
trend lines over the last three years for the various Funds. He noted the General
Fund which was relatively flat and the Sewer Fund which went up substantially
in 2019, which was primarily due to the rate increase. Mr. Grenier asked if the
$3 million down payment which was received for the Sewer sale is represented
in the General Fund. Mr. Shank stated while it is, it is not represented in the
change because what they are looking at on the graphic Mr. Grenier has referred
to is Net Position, which is the Assets minus the Liabilities. He stated while it is
in the General Fund, it is not represented on any line because it is booked as an
Advance Liability. He stated they do not recognize that Liability as a deposit until
everything is signed, and it will then roll into the Revenue. Mr. Shank stated all
of the lines are moving, but that movement did not affect the lines. Mr. Gentile
stated it is in General Fund Cash and General Fund Liability so they offset each
other. Mr. Grenier stated what is being shown on this graph is the Net, and

Mr. Shank agreed.

Mr. Grenier stated he feels that there is some level of risk if the sale does not
go through or goes through later in time. He asked if the Audit considered

in any way the potential risk that the sale does not go through, and the
Township has to give back the $3 million; and he asked what that would

do to the General Fund. Mr. Shank stated that is exactly why it was



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 12 of 27

presented as a Liability. He stated Mr. Grenier’s concern would be met if the
Township had recognized it as Revenue before all of the Conditions are met;
and if they had and the sale did not go through, the Township would have a
“big hit.” He stated because the Township recognized it as a Liability, it would
be a reversal of the Liability; and that was the right way. He added it is also
conservative in the respect that while the Township has the deposit, they are
not recognizing it as Township money because all of the Conditions of the
Agreement have not yet been met.

Mr. Grenier stated there is a statement that they are selling the Sewer system
for $53 million recognizing that there is some level, probably low, of that not
happening. He asked if that sale does not occur, and the Township does not
get the $53 million, does the Audit consider what the Township’s financial
position is. Mr. Shank stated the Township has done what they are supposed
to in an Audit, and it discloses the potential subsequent event. He stated

it is in the Opinion to bring this to the reader’s attention. He stated there is
also the deposit which has been shown as a Liability. He stated aside from
the deposit and the cash, when you look at the numbers in the Audit, it has
not been reflected because it is an event in the future. Mr. Shank stated
Audits are done on historical Financial Statements, and there is no indication
of how that will affect the Township in those historical figures; and in fact it
is not really allowed. Mr. Grenier stated since they did not consider that,
and the Township is still in generally good financial health, the Township is

in really good shape. Mr. Shank stated the Township is in good shape.

Mr. McCartney thanked Mr. Shank and Mr. Gentile for putting together an
easy-to-follow presentation tonight. He also thanked Mr. Lewis for asking
the important questions.

ENGINEER’S REPORT

Mr. Pockl stated the Board received his Report in their packet.

Approve to Participate with Falls Township in the Paving of Walnut Lane to
be Paid in 2022 at an Amount not to Exceed $18,000

Mr. Pockl stated a few months ago as part of Falls Township’s Road Program,
Falls requested Lower Makefield participating in paving Elbow Lane which is
half located in Lower Makefield and half located in Falls Township. He stated



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 13 of 27

as they have been going through their Road Program, Falls has been seeing
some savings on the quantities that they initially bid out; and they have
considered Alternatives for expanding the scope of their Road Program to
include Walnut Lane, which is also half in Falls Township and half in Lower
Makefield Township. Mr. Pockl stated based on the quantities that the Falls
Township engineer has measured out in the field and using the unit prices
in the Bid for Elbow Lane, they believe that the amount would not exceed
$18,000.

Mr. Pockl stated Walnut Lane was last paved in 1988, and it is not in good
condition, although it is not in the worst condition of all of the Township
roads. He stated it is a dead-end road so it does not get a lot of volume of
traffic.

Mr. McCartney moved to participate with Falls Township in the paving of
Walnut Lane to be paid in 2022 at an amount not to exceed $18,000.

Ms. Blundi stated there was another road in that Township, so she feels
that this would piggy-back into what is already pending, and she feels
the Motion would be to include an Amendment to the previous Agree-
ment for Elbow Lane, and Mr. McCartney agreed.

Dr. Weiss seconded.

Mr. Grenier stated while he is in favor of doing this, he would like to know
if there is some form of communication that could be set up with Falls and
any other Township that we share a border with to allow the Board to plan
ahead more in the future rather than getting this in the middle of the year.
Ms. Blundi stated that was discussed previously. Mr. Grenier stated while
it was discussed it is not happening yet so we need to emphasize that with
our neighbors so that the Board can prepare for it. Ms. Blundi stated she
knows that Mr. Ferguson has been working on that, although this one was
part of a Bid Alternate.

Mr. Ferguson stated he is in communication with the Manager of Middletown
and the Manager of Upper Makefield. He stated Falls Township has a new
Manager, and they have discussed that during Budget time, they will discuss
any shared roads; and we have that same understanding with Middletown
that those would be communicated back and forth to avoid this happening

in the future. Mr. Ferguson stated the new Falls Township Manager came

in at the end of last year, and they have since started talking so that this



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 14 of 27

should be avoided in the future. Mr. Grenier stated while he appreciates that,
this year he is inclined to vote in favor of it given the circumstances and the
relatively low dollar amount; but next year if it comes up the same way, he
probably would not vote in favor of it.

Ms. Blundi stated while Mr. Grenier has a valid point, in both of these situations,
if the Township did not agree to this, there would be a road where one side
would be paved, and the Lower Makefield side would not be paved. She stated
she appreciates all that Mr. Ferguson is doing to have better communication
with the other Townships.

Motion carried unanimously.

Opportunity for Public Comment for the Township NDES MS4 Pollution
Reduction Plan

Mr. Pockl stated at a previous Board meeting, he presented the status of the
Township’s MS4 Permit which is the Stormwater Permit that we have with DEP
for our stormwater system. He stated the status report included an overview
of the Township’s Pollution Reduction Plan, which is required by DEP. One of
the requirements of the Pollution Reduction Plan is that a Public Comment
period is provided, and the draft copy of the Pollution Reduction Plan was
put on the Township Website and a hard copy is in the Township Building

for those wishing to come in to review it. He stated the Public Comment
period began on August 1. Mr. Pockl stated they did receive valid comments
from the EAC, and he is in process of incorporating them into the Pollution
Reduction Plan.

There was no one wishing to make Public Comment at this time.

Mr. Pockl asked that those wishing to make comments reach out to him
before the Public Comment period ends on August 30, 2021.

PROJECT UPDATES

Memorial Park Project

Mr. Pockl stated the contractor has put the stone sub base down within the
trail and the tennis court area, and they intend to put the stone sub base down



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 15 of 27

in the parking lot area early next week after they verify the condition of the soil
underneath where the stone will be placed. He stated hopefully by next week
they will have the stone sub base and the asphalt paving in the tennis court/
pickleball court area, the walking trail, and the additional parking lot on the west
side.

Mr. Grenier asked Mr. Pockl when he feels the Memorial Park project will be
complete and ready for use. Mr. Pockl stated it is weather-dependent, and
there is also the two-week break in and around the events of 9/11. He stated
the project will be shut down the week before and the week after 9/11.

He stated he feels they are on schedule to complete the project by early
October. Mr. Grenier asked what should people anticipate the area will

look like during the two-week period around 9/11. Mr. Pockl stated there is
the existing parking lot on the western edge; and as part of this project, we
are expanding that parking lot to include two additional rows of parking.

He stated he feels that should be fully stoned and paved, weather-permitting,
so that area should be able to be used for parking during the event. He stated
all of the contractor’s equipment that they have on site will be parked on the
the eastern side and from the main entrance, the circle driveway, and further
west, there should not be any equipment in that area.

Sandy Run Road Project

Mr. Ferguson stated the project is on schedule. The targeted completion date
was when School started. He stated much of the work is done. He stated
while he does not anticipate that there will be a delay, in the event that they
get to the time when School is opening, they could take measures to let
School buses through the same way they would let emergency vehicles
through now. He stated if that happens, they will coordinate with the School
District to make sure that there is no impact on School bus traffic, although
they anticipate at this point the work will be completed before School starts.
Mr. Ferguson stated photos of the project have been shared on social media.
He stated they will also put on-line and on the TV Channel some information
on the use of round-abouts including videos which will show round-about
etiquette.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 16 of 27

Taylorsville/Woodside/Maplevale Re-Paving

Mr. Grenier asked for an update on where the re-paving of this area stands.
Mr. Ferguson stated Mr. Hucklebridge is in contact weekly about this, and

it is anticipated that the paving will take place in September. Mr. Ferguson
stated once he gets a timeline, it will be posted on-line. Mr. Grenier asked
about the scope of what is being re-paved, adding he had talked about the
300 feet of Maplevale, a section of Taylorsville, and part of Woodside.

Mr. Ferguson stated they will put up the scope of work as well. He added
that if there is something beyond this that has been impacted, the Township
will reach out to them before they start the project to make the case if it is
beyond what they originally planned.

Sandy Run Road Public Comment

Mr. Dan Matlis, 585 Hearthstone Drive asked about the Edgewood round-
about. He asked if anyone had taken into consideration the width of the
round-abouts to accommodate some of the heavy equipment such as fire
trucks, plows, and trailers. He stated he feels the round-abouts are about 15’,
and a heavy plow is about 12’ and with a truck and/or trailer, it is not going to
fit through the round-about without damage. Mr. Ferguson stated that has
been considered. He stated the literal width of the round-about may not
accommodate those larger pieces of equipment, and the traffic engineer had
made some presentations about that. He stated some of those presentations
may still be on-line. He stated he had indicated that there may be certain size
vehicle that would go over the center circle of the round-about and get through
without causing damage. He stated part of the design of the round-about was
to make the center areas stronger than the asphalt to withstand the trucks
going over them in those instances. Mr. Ferguson stated in time, they may
have to do some repairs to those center areas. He stated they actually took
out Township vehicles including fire trucks and garbage trucks to reinforce

the idea that they could fit under the parameters that he just outlined.

Mr. Matlis asked how this will be plowed since if you go through with a plow
given the way that the concrete has been put in sections, the plow will lift the
concrete “in no time.” Mr. Ferguson stated he would defer to the Public Works
Director for that, but he feels that they would run that with a smaller truck;
and that has been discussed in depth with the plowing crews, the Public Works



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 17 of 27

Director, and the Township engineer. He agrees that eventually it could get
chipped or damaged, but this should not be any more so than a normal road,
sidewalk, or curb area.

Mr. Pockl stated the curb within the central island of the round-about is
specifically designed to be mountable and to be at such an angle that the
plows should not damage the curb.

Mr. Matlis stated he is an engineer as well, and he feels that will happen
when there is no settling, but as soon as there is settling, there will be
unevenness in the settling; and the edge of a 12’plow will pick it up.

He stated he does not understand why that was not made wider since
there is plenty of room in the circle; and they could have made the round-
about 2’ shorter in radius and still achieved the same results and not have
to come back in two years to repair something that is brand new.

Mr. Ferguson stated they had three separate engineering firms that were
part of the design, the quality review, and a final say as to how that was
completed. Mr. Matlis stated while he understands that, his concern is

that he is sure that there were three separate engineering firms that looked
at the Sandy Run project originally and everyone said that it would be okay,
and now they are spending a lot of money fixing something that should have
been done right the first time.

Mr. Lewis stated they considered over twenty-five different design
permutations and “reviewed multiple engineers and made an engineering
change.” He stated the traffic engineer developed the least expensive
option of the ones that were considered and developed a compelling
simulation model of how cars and trucks would flow through. He stated
the Board spent a significant amount time on this, and he is optimistic that
we will be able to open Sandy Run Road in a safe manner.

MANAGER’S REPORT

Approve Tree Planting from the Tree Bank Fund as Recommended by the
EAC at the Revere Road Tennis Courts and Twig Lane Tot Lot

Ms. Linda Salvati was present. Mr. Ferguson stated the EAC recently had a
discussion about tree plantings at the Revere Road tennis courts and the
Twig Lane tot lot. He stated a concept was reviewed by the EAC. If approved



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 18 of 27

we would get multiple quotes on, but the collective amount between both of
these is about $8,000 so there can be an Administrative approval. He stated
this could come out of the Tree Bank Fund which has about $100,000 in it, and
is specifically for these types of purposes. Mr. Ferguson stated the Concept
Plan had been provided in the Board’s packet.

Ms. Blundi stated the EAC provides the Township with invaluable comments
and input on different projects. She stated over the last two years, they have
been doing a lot of work in planting and using Tree Bank money to plant around
the Township. She stated Ms. Salvati has identified these projects and used

her professional expertise to scope out the plantings so that we can get the
most we can for the money.

Ms. Salvati stated the numbers that she provided were estimates, and they
were just for the trees alone, and not for installation. She stated she took

the original design that was done by Boucher & James and made some minor
changes based on what is existing at the sites, what needs to be added, and
where it needs to be added. She stated what is proposed is a combination of
trees 6’ to 7' and some larger trees. She stated she tried to keep the numbers
as consistent to the original design as possible. She stated at Revere Road
there is a total of thirty-one trees, and at the Tot Lot there is a total of twenty-
two trees.

Ms. Blundi stated they hope that there will be a more ambitious presentation
later this year to scope out additional plantings with this funding for 2022.

Mr. Grenier stated Ms. Salvati has been doing a great job leading the tree-
planting efforts. Mr. Grenier stated he understands that the estimate that
has been provided was for material and not labor, and Ms. Salvati agreed.

Mr. Grenier asked if adding the labor costs will put us near the threshold

for this having to be Bid out or will we be using volunteer labor. Mr. Ferguson
stated if it involves labor, and they start seeing quotes that fall outside of

the parameters of an Administrative approval, then it would need to come
back to the Board to take appropriate action. He stated under $10,000 we

do not even need to get three written quotes; however, he has it as a matter
of policy that we do so regardless of that. He stated they will see the quotes,
and if they have to do something differently, they will come back to the Board.

Ms. Blundi stated this is not intended to be a volunteer project, but there
will be an opportunity for volunteers to help with planting at Patterson Farm
this year which the EAC is also organizing.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 19 of 27

Mr. Grenier moved and Mr. Lewis seconded to authorize the Township Manager
to Bid out the planting plans for the Revere Road tennis courts and the Twig
Lane tot lot.

Mr. Lewis asked if these will all be native trees, and Ms. Salvati stated she did
confirm with the nursery where she got the quotes from that these are natives.

Mr. Grenier noted the drawings from Boucher & James from 2016 which just
reference shade trees, understory trees, evergreen trees, and proposed lawn;
and there is no mention of size of material, species, or planting details with
tree protection in place, etc. Ms. Salvati stated she provided more in-depth
information with photographs of the existing conditions and spread sheets
with the tree names, size, and the cost. Ms. Blundi stated Mr. Bray was in
favor of the selection that Ms. Salvati provided.

Mr. Grenier asked Ms. Salvati to discuss what trees she is looking at. Ms. Salvati
reviewed what trees would be at the tennis courts and the tot lot which includes
some aesthetically-pleasing ornamentals and other trees. Mr. Grenier asked
about the size, and Ms. Salvati stated the shade trees would be 2” to 2 %"
caliper, and they would be ball and burlap which are larger trees that would
need to be brought in and installed professionally. She stated everything

else would be between 5’ to 6’ which are still decent-sized trees. Mr. Grenier
asked if they speced out any deer protection. Ms. Salvati stated while she

did not, she could. She stated she does not feel that would be needed for

the 2” to 2 %" caliper trees, but some of the 5’ to 6’ trees could benefit from

a plastic cage. Mis. Salvati stated if we go with the nursery that she speced

this with, the trees would have a one-year warranty; and most nurseries

will guarantee for a year. Mr. Grenier stated it may be good to get a price

for tree protection on the smaller trees to protect from deer browsing.

Motion carried unanimously.

Approve to Authorize Advertisement for Snow Plow Contractors

Mr. Lewis moved, Dr. Weiss seconded and it was unanimously carried to
authorize advertisement for snow plow contractors for the upcoming
winter season.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 20 of 27

Approve to Authorize Advertisement to Bid Leaf Contractors

Mr. Lewis moved, Dr. Weiss seconded and it was unanimously carried to
authorize advertisement to Bid leaf contractors for the upcoming leaf collection
season.

Approve Payment Request #2 for the Manhole Rehabilitation Project to
Advanced Rehabilitation Technology, LLC. in the Amount of $3,220.00

Mr. Ferguson stated this is relative to closing out the 2020 Sewer lining
project with the final payment.

Dr. Weiss moved and Mr. Lewis seconded to approve Payment Request #2
for the Manhole Rehabilitation Project to Advanced Rehabilitation Technology,
LLC. in the amount of $3,220.00.

Mr. Grenier asked how this came in compared to Budget, and Mr. Ferguson
stated there were no Bid Alternates or anything that pushed this beyond the
originally-budgeted amount in 2020. Mr. Grenier asked if they are satisfied
with what was done, and Mr. Ferguson agreed.

Motion carried unanimously.

Police Activity

Mr. Ferguson stated we were on scene today for an event that happened in
Yardley Borough where Chief Kelly was wounded. He stated this resulted in a
great deal of strain on all of the Officers. He thanked the entire Police Depart-
ment particularly the command staff that were on site the whole time.

He added that Chief Kelly is doing well. Ms. Blundi thanked all of the Township
and Borough Officers who responded.

SOLICITOR’S REPORT

Mr. Truelove stated the Executive Session commenced at 6:45 p.m. and
informational items were discussed as well as litigation and Contract items.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 21 of 27

Mr. Truelove stated with the help of a lot of the Supervisors, Mr. Pockl, and
others he and Mr. Ferguson were able to conclude a Lease Termination Agree-
ment with BrightFarms. He stated the BrightFarms structure will be coming
down sometime in September, the utility lines will be returned to their pre-
structure condition, and the ground will be returned to its pre-structure
condition and quality as well. The Agreement outlines all of those terms and
conditions as well as a security arrangement that will insure that the land is
tillable again by March of next year. He stated there will be oversight as this
work continues.

Approve Stipulations to Settle Tax Assessment Appeals for Lower Bucks
Corporate Center Properties as Requested by Primary Taxing Authority,
Pennsbury School District

Mr. Truelove stated Pennsbury School District filed Reverse Appeals for
Tax Assessments in the last year or two for eight properties, five of which
are located at Lower Makefield Corporate Center North and three of which
are located at Lower Makefield Corporate Center South. He stated as the
primary taxing authority, they have come to a positive settlement for tax
years 2020 and 2021. He stated the anticipated Tax Revenue for some of
these places is still uncertain due to COVID, but this is still a positive result
with the aggregate amount of Tax Revenue increase to the Township being
around $20,000 for those two years.

Mr. Lewis moved, Mr. Grenier seconded and it was unanimously carried to
approve the Stipulations to Settle Tax Assessment Appeals for Lower Bucks
Corporate Center Properties as requested by the primary taxing authority,
Pennsbury School District.

ZONING HEARING BOARD MATTERS

With regard to Appeal #21-1928 Warren Parry for the property located at

500 American Drive, Yardley, PA 19067, Tax Parcel #20-057-076 Variance request
from the Township Zoning Ordinance #200-23B in order to install a patio and
concrete pad for a hot tub which would increase the impervious surface from
the existing 20.28% to 22.2% where 18% is the allowable amount, it was agreed
to leave the matter to the Zoning Hearing Board.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 22 of 27

Mr. Grenier stated he has been getting questions about a number of Zoning
Hearing Board Appeals that have been Continued. Mr. Truelove stated the
Jennings matter was Continued to September 21. Mr. Jennings has retained
Counsel, and they may be submitting Revised Plans. Mr. Majewski stated
they will be submitting Revised Plans, and their attorney will be at the next
meeting. Mr. Majewski stated the Moock matter was also Continued, and
the Applicant will be looking into their Application further as the Zoning
Hearing Board had indicated that they might be able to redesign the Plan so
that it would not require any Variances. Mr. Majewski stated another Appeal
was Continued as the Applicants had technical difficulties and called into the
meeting late after the Board had already voted to Continue the matter.

Mr. Majewski stated the Deck Application will have a Special Meeting held
just for that Appeal on August 31.

ZONING, INSPECTIONS, AND PLANNING

Approve Contract for Professional Services for Kaplan Subdivision (Plan #642)

Mr. Majewski stated the request is for the Board to approve a Contract for
professional services for the Kaplan Subdivision, which is a two-lot Minor
Subdivision to create one new house located on Dolington Road just north of
Woodside Road. He stated this is to secure the public improvements as part of
the Plan which includes stormwater management, landscaping, and erosion and
sediment control.

Dr. Weiss moved, Mr. Grenier seconded and it was unanimously carried to
approve Contract for professional services for Kaplan Subdivision (Plan #642).

Approve Release of Letter of Credit for McGinn/Minehart Subdivision

Mr. Majewski stated this is the Subdivision which adjoins Memorial Park at

the intersection of Woodside Road and Lindenhurst Road. He stated this was
a seven-lot Subdivision, and all work was completed in 2016. The developer

is now requesting release of their Letter of Credit in the amount of $32,595.20.

Dr. Weiss moved, Mr. McCartney seconded and it was unanimously carried to
approve the release of the Letter of Credit for the McGinn/Minehart Subdivision.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 23 of 27

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Timothy Daly, 1554 Clark Drive, stated he is a fourteen-year resident and an
avid user of the Township parks. He stated his children were members of YMS
and his wife is a leader of the Girl Scout Troop for Sandy Run which utilized a
Township park for their summer camp. He provided some information to

Mr. Ferguson.

Mr. Daly stated on May 2 and May 15 there were some inappropriate uses of
our parks that he uncovered through the review of Ordinances that are publicly
available on the Website; and he found that those uses were in violation of
multiple Ordinances. He stated Mr. Robert Abrams, who is also present this
evening, helped him out with some “RTKs” to obtain the Permits. Mr. Daly
stated the Permits were requested by an individual named Ann Warner-Ault
with a purpose of use of “get together for friends.” Mr. Daly stated on-line he
found a flyer from Lois Lambing and Josh Waldorf for a campaign event that
was at the same exact location at the exact same time. He stated on May 15,
an event was held at the pavilion, and he found a flyer talking about an event
at the same exact location at the same exact time. He stated on-line there were
also comments from an individual listed as “Ann WA,” which he construed and
has confirmed, is Ann Warner-Ault. He stated her comment was: “Great event
— thanks for the donuts.”

Mr. Daly stated his concern is that this was used for a campaign event, and
there are requirements based on the Ordinance that someone would have to
go to in order to do some of the things that can be seen in the photographs

that he has just provided. He stated it was disturbing to see that Josh Waldorf,
who is a public official who the Supervisors all know and “are personally friendly
with,” would by-pass the Ordinances and by-pass the Board of Supervisors who
had to approve him using the Parks in the manner that he did.

Mr. Daly noted that in Section 141-19 there are very specific rules on “peddling
and soliciting;” adding that he feels they can all agree that a “campaign event is
peddling and soliciting.” Mr. Daly stated within that Section it states that they
cannot collect any funds, cannot distribute any hand bills, cannot put out any
advertising material; and as can be seen in the picture provided, advertising
material was presented. Mr. Daly stated it also states that you cannot post
unauthorized signs, and it can be seen in the pictures that there are campaign
signs on Lower Makefield Township grounds. Mr. Daly stated in order for
them to do this, it states that it cannot be done without first obtaining written



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 24 of 27

permission from the Board and a Permit to be issued by the Township. Mr. Daly
stated he did the “RTK,” and could not find any permission from the Board so it
is clear “that he did not come and ask for it.”

Mr. Daly stated the second thing that he feels which was done which was a
violation of the Ordinances by Ms. Lambing and Mr. Waldorf was under
Section 141-20, which is Unlawful Obstruction. Mr. Daly stated their set-up
had donuts at the Township pavilion; and when they were at the Garden of
Reflection, they were at the kids playground handing out candy. He stated
at the pavilion they used donuts to entice little kids over from the YMS
soccer field. Mr. Daly stated he knows of one person in particular who was
interfered with as she tried to take her child to the restroom, and that
individual is Ms. Blundi’s next-door neighbor. Mr. Daly stated that individual
was very offended and upset over the fact that Mr. Waldorf interfered with
her and her child in their path to go to the bathroom. Mr. Daly stated it is
very clear to anyone who is utilizing the Park, that they should not interfere
with other people.

Mr. Daly also noted Section 141-32. He stated that given that Mr. Waldorf
and Ms. Lambing did not get the Permits, there is a question as to whether
they violated that Section.

Mr. Daly noted Section 141-35 with regard to violations and penalties;
and for people who do violate the Ordinance, it states that there is a $600
fine for each and every incident.

Mr. Daly stated he will leave the evidence adding that he felt it was
necessary to do this publicly given that it was a public official; otherwise
he would have gone to the Lower Makefield Township Police and filed a
complaint there. He stated he wanted to make sure that he made this
aware in a public setting, especially since Mr. Waldorf “is good friends
with all of you.” He stated he understands that this is probably hard to
listen to given that they all “have personal respect for him; but given
what he has uncovered, he hopes they will do their duties as people
within this community.” Mr. Daly stated he takes violations in our
parks seriously as one of the biggest values for house values in this
community is our parks. He stated the worst thing you can do is allow
campaign events to happen “on hallowed ground like the Garden of
Reflection, and that is so inappropriate, and very unfortunate that it
happened.” He stated he hopes the Board will take action and do the
“right thing.”



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 25 of 27

Mr. Daly stated while he is not a lawyer, he questions whether or not there is a
criminal act here as well because there “is clearly coordination, and there was
an attempt to falsify a governmental document.” He stated if there is a criminal
act that falls underneath falsifying a government document, he hopes that the
Board will go forward on it to the full extent of the law.

Mr. Ferguson stated he is familiar with the Permit, and both Parties have done
this over the years. He stated the Application itself came in from the Campaign
Manager, and that it not unlike Republican events by Republican Supervisors,
Congress people, and State reps who did the same thing. He stated the Permit
itself was authorized through the Park & Recreation Department; and staff,
administering the Code do not view these events, which have been held by
both Parties, as falling under Peddling. Mr. Ferguson stated with regard to the
requirement of the Permit, they make the Application to Park & Rec, and have
to post a check with a security deposit; and if there is not a need for clean-up,
etc. the deposit is returned. Mr. Ferguson stated he feels they administered
this, through their interpretation of the Code, consistent with what has been
done in the past, and it was done properly.

Mr. Grenier stated Section 141 was referenced. Mr. Grenier stated the terms
“soliciting and peddling” were noted by Mr. Daly, and those terms are under
Section 147. Mr. Grenier read as follows: “Soliciting and peddling shall not apply
to persons seeking local County, State, or Federal elective office or persons
engaged on behalf of a candidate for local County, State, or Federal elective
office.” Mr. Grenier asked Mr. Truelove if that applies in this case. Mr. Truelove
agreed. He stated in this case Section 147 addresses situations where people

are going door-to-door, and that is why there is a separate category spelled out
for

candidates.

Mr. Truelove stated the threshold issue is whether the claim even meets that
standards because events occur at different Township facilities involving
political parties and political groups all the time. He stated both political
parties have met in the Township meeting room for years. He stated some-
times they may have signs and food, and that is not considered soliciting or
peddling.

Mr. Truelove stated we have had people going door-to-door selling windows,
etc., and the Police have been involved, and they need a License to do that;
however, the exemption is when someone is a political candidate.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 26 of 27

Mr. Truelove stated he does not feel the situation that has been brought up this
evening does not apply to events that occur on Township property in the
manner that has been described. He stated Mr. Ferguson also discussed other
circumstances which were very similar to this as well.

Mr. Daly stated his concern is with the behavior that was exhibited that he

feels “crosses bounds; and to hand out candy to little kids who did not come to
the event and to hand out donuts to kids that did not come to the event violates
the Ordinance.” Mr. Daly stated the pavilion and the spot at the Garden of
Reflection were for people who were coming to the event and were invited by
those people who rented it. He stated the individuals from YMS who went to
the bathroom did not ask to be “intruded upon by having a donut handed to
their kid so they could get a conversation with the parent.” He stated that is

the problem he has. He stated he has no problem with them renting a room

like the Township meeting room and having a party amongst themselves with
invited guests. He stated the issue is when you are “dealing with little kids,
going onto the kids playgrounds, interfering with YMS Soccer events with five-
year-olds and six-year-olds is really a low bar.” He stated he feels everyone can
agree with this, and he does not feel any of the Board members would have done
something like that. He stated that is where his issue is. He stated he hopes that
the Board will look into this and take action.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Guidance on Property Inclusion to Ad Hoc Property Committee

Ms. Blundi stated the Ad Hoc Property Committee has been meeting. She stated
we are still looking for volunteers; and those interested in participating should
submit their resume. She stated there was a very aggressive timetable which
had been delayed by the formation of the Committee as well as what could be
construed as a large Agenda. She stated tonight they are looking to give the
Committee direction that they should focus on the properties contained
within the three reports. Ms. Blundi asked that Mr. Ferguson prepare a
summary of those three reports so that everyone understands what the focus
is, which she feels are those properties that are not currently being used for
governmental functions that are in some level of disrepair and/or neglect, and
in need of immediate attention to prevent any further deterioration.



August 18, 2021 Board of Supervisors — page 27 of 27

Mr. Ferguson stated per the Ad Hoc Property Committee Chair’s request
and Ms. Blundi’s as well, he will create that Summary and the punch list

of the properties so that they are easily referenced and understood moving
forward.

SUPERVISORS REPORTS

Mr. Lewis stated the Citizens Traffic Committee met, and they want to
follow up on “revised painting of lines” on Oxford Valley Road, and that
should be scheduled in the next few weeks.

Mr. Grenier stated the Planning Commission reviewed a Sketch Plan of
another option for the Quill house area which was presented by Mr. Troilo.
He stated they are asking for use of a Township parking lot for their own
use, and he feels it is still quite a dense development.

Mr. Grenier wished Chief Kelly a quick recovery and thanked the local Police
Departments and first responders who were able to get Chief Kelly to safety
quickly. He added that same group had to address another dangerous matter

in Middletown Township.

Mr. Grenier stated he is getting a lot of requests to post the Board of Supervisors
Agenda on the LMT Facebook page; and Mr. Ferguson stated they did miss a
deadline, and they will make sure that is done in the future.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:35 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

John B. Lewis, Secretary






LOWER MAKEFIELD TOWNSHIP
BOS MEETING - 08/18/2021

8/2/2021 8/16/2021
A/P WARRANT LISTS PRINTED MANUAL PRINTED MANUAL TOTAL
CHECKS CKS/WIRES CHECKS CKS/WIRES
Fund
01- GENERAL FUND 230,956.69 3,861.76 102,308.79 3,706.39 340,833.63
02- STREET LIGHTS 487.35 2,657.29 3,144.64
03- FIRE SAFETY -
04- HYDRANTS 212.84 212.84
05- PARK AND RECREATION 32,264.57 772.64 34,956.90 (28.71) 67,965.40
06- P &RFEEINLIEU -
08- SEWER 120,446.21 365.46 51,769.98 172,581.65
09- POOL 16,576.37 1,180.52 11,033.91 28,790.80
11- TRAFFIC IMPACT -
15- GOLF COURSE 246,115.00 246,115.00
18- SEWER CAPITAL PROJECTS 6,379.47 6,379.47
19- SPECIAL PROJECTS 5,631.85 455.50 6,087.35
20- DEBT SERVICE -
21- REGENCY BRIDGE 6,174.75 3,713.18
30- CAPITAL RESERVE 178.50 178.50
31- POOL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND -
32- TREE FUND -
35- LIQUID FUELS 9,560.96 537,444.78 547,005.74
36- ROAD MACHINERY FUND -
40- 9/11 MEMORIAL 6,742.19 2,740.83 9,483.02
45- PATTERSON FARM 1,537.05 21,767.61 23,304.66
50- AMBULANCE/RESCUE SQUAD -
84- DEVELOPER ESCROW 21,286.65 7,755.59 29,042.24
91- UNEMPLOYMENT
451,843.14 6,180.38 491,866.89 541,122.46 1,481,124.94
JULY 2021 PAYROLL AND INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Fund
01- GENERAL FUND OPERATING TO PAYROLL ACCOUNT 729,490.39
GENERAL FUND OPERATING TO 401A DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN ACCOUNT 7,624.66
60- POLICE PENSION FUND TO D.R.O.P. ACCOUNT 4,882.74
741,997.79

John B. Lewis James McCartney

Fredric K. Weiss Suzanne S. Blundi

Daniel R. Grenier




